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Request for Proposal – Energy Performance Contract (2019-153) 
Addendum # 3 

Issued – January 20, 2020 
 
The following are responses to questions received regarding the above noted RFP: 
 
Question 1: Can you provide the size (square meters or feet) of each of the facilities (excluding 
sewer lift stations? 
 
Response 1: 

 
 

Question 2: Are you able to share the energy related usage of each of the facilities to be 

audited? 

Response 2: See information provided in response to question 1. 

Question 3: Can you provide a list of which facilities are connected to the Charlottetown 

District Energy System? 

Response 3:  See information provided in response to question 1. 
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Question 4: Can you provide the City’s procurement policy: 

Response 4: The City of Charlottetown procurement policy may be accessed on the City’s 

website at the following link: 

 https://www.charlottetown.ca/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15996732 

 

Question 5: Could you please clarify what is meant by a “Comprehensive Condition Facility 

Audit” in item #5 of the Scope of Work found on page 12? 

Response 5: The term “Comprehensive Condition Facility Audit” primarily includes a review of 

structural components including floors, roofs, windows, doors, and systems including plumbing, 

HVAC, and electrical but we don’t want interior and exterior components to be excluded. 

Question 6: Does the “Comprehensive Condition Facility Audit” include Building Condition 

Assessment (BCA), also known as a Facility Condition Assessment (FCA)?  If so, are the following 

components included: 

 Structural components including walls, floors, roofs, windows and doors 

 Systems, including plumbing, HVAC and electrical 

 Interior components including finishes and fixtures 

 Exterior components including finishes and fixtures 

Response 6: See response to question 5 above. 

Question 7: What is the expected output for the BCA? 

Response 7: The expected output is the development and implementation of an Energy 

Performance System for the City-owned and controlled properties. 

Question 8: Does the City us an Asset Management software program?  If yes, is the proponent 

expected to upload the reports into this system.  If no, would the City be interested in having 

the reports uploaded into an Asset Management Software system? 

Response 8: The City of Charlottetown does not currently use asset management software but 

is open to suggestions. 

Question 9: What level of energy audit (ASHRE Level 1, ASHRE Level 2, or ASHRE Level 3) is 

expected as part of the “Comprehensive Condition Facility Audit? 

Response 9: For phase 1 of this RFP, at least Level 2 is expected.  Part of the final contract will 

be to show the ability to conduct the ASHRE Level 3. 

 

https://www.charlottetown.ca/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15996732
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Question 10: Why is the City unable to guarantee that the successful proponent will implement 

work that it outlines in the audit reports? 

Response 10: Determination of the components to be implements will be determined during 

the evaluation phase as well as during negotiation of the final contract with the successful 

proponent. 

Question 11: 2.10, page 8 - Proposals will be evaluated against the mandatory 

criteria.  Proposals not meeting all mandatory criteria will be rejected without further 

consideration.  Proposals that do meet all the mandatory criteria will then be assessed and 

scored against the desirable criteria.   

a.      The RFP does not indicate what is mandatory criteria vs desirable criteria 

Response 11: Mandatory criteria are in Section 3.1 – Requirement and Scope of Service and the 

desirable criteria are in Section 4.0 – Evaluation Criteria. 

Question 12: 4.1, e), page 15 - Provide a list of the municipalities that are currently serviced 

locally.  If you include previous clients, please identify them on the list.  

a.      Can you please define what “current” vs “previous” clients means.  
 

Response 12: Current clients: Clients that are currently going through the process of energy 

efficiency updates, be it in phase 1 or phase 2. 

Question 13: 4.1, f) page 15 - Provide a statement on your firm's corporate policy with regard 

to contingent commissions and how you will ensure the fair placement of the City's insurance 

program should your firm be awarded the contract.  

a.      Can you please define “contingent commissions”? 

Response 13: A contingent commission is a commission paid to an intermediary by and 

insurance or re-insurance company with a value dependent on the occurrence of an event. 

Question 14: 4.2 Page 16 - References - Proponents are asked to submit contact names and 

telephone numbers of four existing clients and four former clients of the local office of a similar 

size and/or complexity to the City (preferably risk managed accounts).  

a.      Can you please define “existing” vs “former” 

Response 14: Existing clients: Clients that are currently going through the process of energy 

efficiency updates be it in phase 1 or phase 2. 
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Question 15: 2.17 COMPLETENESS OF PROPOSAL – this section reads as though the proponent 

will design, create or supply a system or manage a program that has been identified in the 

proposal will be provided by the proponent at no charge. While we agree that the cost for this 

RFP response is at no cost to the city this language suggests that the cost to implement a 

program is also at no cost which we would like clarified in writing. 

Response 15: The cost of preparing a response to this RFP will be at no cost to the City.  Any 

costs, including trips taken to visit facilities or to make a presentation to the evaluation 

committee will be the responsibility of the proponent.  Any costs incurred I to implement the 

recommendations of the successful proponent will be determined based on the cost savings 

resulting from the implementation of the final cost saving measures.  i.e. vendor’s 

compensation will be the cost savings resulting from the implementation of measures identified 

during the audit and negotiation of the final contract. 

END OF DOCUMENT 


